
GRAND VALLEY METROPOLITAN COUNCIL 

ADA TOWNSHIP  ALGOMA TOWNSHIP  ALLENDALE TOWNSHIP  ALPINE TOWNSHIP  BELDING  BYRON TOWNSHIP  CALEDONIA  CALEDONIA TOWNSHIP  CANNON TOWNSHIP CASCADE TOWNSHIP  

CEDAR SPRINGS   COOPERSVILLE   COURTLAND TOWNSHIP  EAST GRAND RAPIDS  GAINES TOWNSHIP  GEORGETOWN TOWNSHIP  GRAND RAPIDS  GRAND RAPIDS TOWNSHIP  GRANDVILLE 

GREENVILLE   HASTINGS  HUDSONVILLE  IONIA  JAMESTOWN TOWNSHIP  KENT COUNTY  KENTWOOD  LOWELL   LOWELL TOWNSHIP   MIDDLEVILLE   NELSON TOWNSHIP  

OTTAWA COUNTY   PLAINFIELD TOWNSHIP    ROCKFORD  SAND LAKE    SPARTA   TALLMADGE TOWNSHIP  WALKER  WAYLAND  WYOMING

678 FRONT AVENUE  SUITE 200  GRAND RAPIDS, MICHIGAN 49504  PH. 616 77-METRO (776-3876)  FAX 774-9292  WWW.GVMC.ORG 

POLICY COMMITTEE MEETING 
Wednesday, November 17, 2021 

9:30 AM 
The Rapid Central Station Conference Room 

250 Grandville Ave SW  
Grand Rapids, MI 49504 

AGENDA 

I. ROLL CALL AND INTRODUCTIONS 

II. APPROVAL OF MINUTES—ACTION: Policy Committee meeting minutes dated
September 15, 2021. 
Please refer to Item II: Attachment A 

III. OPPORTUNITY FOR PUBLIC COMMENT

IV. TIP AMENDMENTS—ACTION: On behalf of MDOT, KCRC, The Rapid, and the
City of Grand Rapids amendments/modifications to the FY2020-2023 TIP are being
requested.
Please refer to Item IV: Attachment A

V. 2022 SAFETY TARGETS—INFORMATION/DISCUSSION/ACTION: GVMC staff
will present the state’s safety targets for 2022 and will provide GVMC data for
comparison and discussion. The committee may choose to take action if desired.
Please refer to Item V: Attachment A

VI. THE RAPID SAFETY PLAN AND TARGETS—INFORMATION/ACTION: The
Committee will be asked to take action to acknowledge the receipt of The Rapid’s
Safety Plan and support their safety targets.
Please refer to Item VI: Attachment A

VII. ELECTION OF OFFICERS

VIII. OTHER BUSINESS

• Special Studies Update

IX. ADJOURNMENT



GRAND VALLEY METROPOLITAN COUNCIL 

ADA TOWNSHIP  ALGOMA TOWNSHIP  ALLENDALE TOWNSHIP  ALPINE TOWNSHIP  BELDING  BYRON TOWNSHIP  CALEDONIA  CALEDONIA TOWNSHIP  CANNON TOWNSHIP CASCADE TOWNSHIP  

CEDAR SPRINGS   COOPERSVILLE   COURTLAND TOWNSHIP  EAST GRAND RAPIDS  GAINES TOWNSHIP  GEORGETOWN TOWNSHIP  GRAND RAPIDS  GRAND RAPIDS TOWNSHIP  GRANDVILLE 

GREENVILLE   HASTINGS  HUDSONVILLE  IONIA  JAMESTOWN TOWNSHIP  KENT COUNTY  KENTWOOD  LOWELL   LOWELL TOWNSHIP   MIDDLEVILLE   NELSON TOWNSHIP  

OTTAWA COUNTY   PLAINFIELD TOWNSHIP    ROCKFORD  SAND LAKE    SPARTA   TALLMADGE TOWNSHIP  WALKER  WAYLAND  WYOMING

678 FRONT AVENUE  SUITE 200  GRAND RAPIDS, MICHIGAN 49504  PH. 616 77-METRO (776-3876)  FAX 774-9292  WWW.GVMC.ORG 

POLICY COMMITTEE MEETING 
Wednesday, September 15, 2021 

9:30 AM 
The Rapid Central Station Conference Room 

250 Grandville Ave SW  
Grand Rapids, MI 49504 

Schweitzer, Chair of the Policy Committee, called the September 15, 2021, meeting to 
order at 9:36 am.  

I. ROLL CALL AND INTRODUCTIONS 

Voting Members Present 

Mark Bennett  Tallmadge Charter Township 

Scott Conners  Proxy for City of Walker 

Darrel Schmalzel City of Walker 

Dennis Kent Proxy for MDOT-Grand Region 

Mike Burns City of Lowell  

Melissa LaGrand Kent County 

Greg Madura  Alpine Township 

Josh Naramore, Vice Chair City of Grand Rapids 

Terry Schweitzer, Chair City of Kentwood 

Casey Ries GRFIA 

Rick Sprague  Proxy for KCRC 

Steve Warren  KCRC 

Mike DeVries  Grand Rapids Township 

Robert DeWard Gaines Township 

Jeff Thornton Village of Caledonia 

Cameron Van Wyngarden Plainfield Township 

Luke Walters  Proxy for  MDOT-Statewide Planning 

Jeff Franklin MDOT 

Kevin Wisselink The Rapid 

Staff and Non-Voting Guests Present 

Andrea Faber  GVMC 

Laurel Joseph  GVMC 

Tyler Kent MDOT-Grand Region 

Aman Pannu  GVMC 

Item II: Attachment A



GRAND VALLEY METROPOLITAN COUNCIL 

ADA TOWNSHIP  ALGOMA TOWNSHIP  ALLENDALE TOWNSHIP  ALPINE TOWNSHIP  BELDING  BYRON TOWNSHIP  CALEDONIA  CALEDONIA TOWNSHIP  CANNON TOWNSHIP CASCADE TOWNSHIP  

CEDAR SPRINGS   COOPERSVILLE   COURTLAND TOWNSHIP  EAST GRAND RAPIDS  GAINES TOWNSHIP  GEORGETOWN TOWNSHIP  GRAND RAPIDS  GRAND RAPIDS TOWNSHIP  GRANDVILLE 

GREENVILLE   HASTINGS  HUDSONVILLE  IONIA  JAMESTOWN TOWNSHIP  KENT COUNTY  KENTWOOD  LOWELL   LOWELL TOWNSHIP   MIDDLEVILLE   NELSON TOWNSHIP  

OTTAWA COUNTY   PLAINFIELD TOWNSHIP    ROCKFORD  SAND LAKE    SPARTA   TALLMADGE TOWNSHIP  WALKER  WAYLAND  WYOMING

678 FRONT AVENUE  SUITE 200  GRAND RAPIDS, MICHIGAN 49504  PH. 616 77-METRO (776-3876)  FAX 774-9292  WWW.GVMC.ORG 

Mike Zonyk GVMC 

Voting Members Not Present 

Terry Brod  Cannon Township 

Mike Burns   City of Lowell 

Dan Burrill   City of Wyoming 

Jamie Davies   City of Rockford 

Michael DeVries  Grand Rapids Charter 

Township 

Robert DeWard Gaines Charter Township 

Adam Elenbaas Allendale Township 

Karyn Ferrick  City of Grand Rapids 

Jeff Franklin   MDOT 

Shay Gallagher  Village of Sparta 

Kevin Green   Algoma Township 

Jerry Hale  Lowell Township 

Bryan Harrison Caledonia Charter Township 

Jim Holtvluwer Ottawa County 

Ken Krombeen  City of Grandville 

Doug LaFave   City of East Grand Rapids 

Matt McConnon  Courtland Township 

Jim Miedema   OCRC 

Tom Noreen   Nelson Township 

Rob Postema   City of Wyoming 

Darrel Schmalzel  City of Walker 

Dan Strikwerda  City of Hudsonville 

Julius Suchy   Ada Township 

Ben Swayze   Cascade Charter Township 

Don Tillema   Byron Township 

Laurie Van Haitsma Jamestown Township 

Steve Warren   KCRC 

Rod Weersing  Georgetown Township 

Mike Womack  City of Cedar Springs 

II. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Schweitzer entertained the following motion: 

MOTION by Naramore, SUPPORT by LaGrand to approve the May 5, 2021, 
Policy Committee minutes and July 21, 2021, Policy/Technical Committee 
minutes. MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY.  

III. PUBLIC COMMENT



GRAND VALLEY METROPOLITAN COUNCIL 

ADA TOWNSHIP  ALGOMA TOWNSHIP  ALLENDALE TOWNSHIP  ALPINE TOWNSHIP  BELDING  BYRON TOWNSHIP  CALEDONIA  CALEDONIA TOWNSHIP  CANNON TOWNSHIP CASCADE TOWNSHIP  

CEDAR SPRINGS   COOPERSVILLE   COURTLAND TOWNSHIP  EAST GRAND RAPIDS  GAINES TOWNSHIP  GEORGETOWN TOWNSHIP  GRAND RAPIDS  GRAND RAPIDS TOWNSHIP  GRANDVILLE 

GREENVILLE   HASTINGS  HUDSONVILLE  IONIA  JAMESTOWN TOWNSHIP  KENT COUNTY  KENTWOOD  LOWELL   LOWELL TOWNSHIP   MIDDLEVILLE   NELSON TOWNSHIP  

OTTAWA COUNTY   PLAINFIELD TOWNSHIP    ROCKFORD  SAND LAKE    SPARTA   TALLMADGE TOWNSHIP  WALKER  WAYLAND  WYOMING

678 FRONT AVENUE  SUITE 200  GRAND RAPIDS, MICHIGAN 49504  PH. 616 77-METRO (776-3876)  FAX 774-9292  WWW.GVMC.ORG 

No public comments. 

IV. TIP AMENDMENTS

Referring to Item IV: Attachment A, Joseph introduced the following 
amendments/modifications to the FY2020-2023 TIP that were described in the 
agenda package. They are as follows: 

• MDOT is requesting the amendments/modifications to the TIP project list in the
attached pending projects and GPAs summary. One of these additions triggered
a GPA threshold increase for the FY2022 Trunkline Traffic Operations and
Safety GPA. MDOT is also requesting committee review of the S/TIP exempt
project list, which has been modified to show only the projects that have
undergone changes since the last committee meeting. Joseph also added that
work from one project has also been diverted to another project.

• The Rapid is requesting to modify the FY 2020 and 2021 Transportation
Improvement Program (TIP). Joseph added that the Rapid has received some
COVID relief funding that is not legally required to be in the TIP, and the Rapid is
requesting committee acknowledgment and use of the committee public
involvement process to satisfy their section 5307 public involvement
requirements. This will not be included in the TIP, but it is going to be
programmed in JobNet and will appear in the S/TIP exempt list for committee
review each month.

D Kent explained the MDOT amendments and S/TIP exempt project list changes in 
further detail. He noted that there was a phase abandonment on one of the ITS 
Applications projects where the EPE phase was combined with the PE phase. The 
bridge replacement project on I-196 over the Grand River and Market Avenue 
expected a significant budget increase due to the use of an old estimate, and the 
construction would be complete in 2023. M-6 WB over Miller Drain rehabilitation 
project had significant damage due to a crash which demanded emergency repair 
that is programmed for this year, but the construction will start next year. The Active 
Traffic Management System project on US-131 from I-96 north to Post drive will use 
the shoulder as a separate lane during peak hours, similar to the shoulder-use on 
US-23 by Ann Arbor. Another project that will start soon is a repair project on M6 
that had damages due to a crash followed by a fire.  

Thornton asked for the purpose of the shoulder use on US-131. D Kent answered 
that the shoulder use will be helpful in dealing with the congestion on US-131 during 
peak traffic hours. 

LaGrand asked D Kent if there have been any successful results from the shoulder 
use on US-23 in Ann Arbor in managing congestion. D Kent replied that the project 
has been successful; however, there have been some enforcement issues 



GRAND VALLEY METROPOLITAN COUNCIL 

ADA TOWNSHIP  ALGOMA TOWNSHIP  ALLENDALE TOWNSHIP  ALPINE TOWNSHIP  BELDING  BYRON TOWNSHIP  CALEDONIA  CALEDONIA TOWNSHIP  CANNON TOWNSHIP CASCADE TOWNSHIP  

CEDAR SPRINGS   COOPERSVILLE   COURTLAND TOWNSHIP  EAST GRAND RAPIDS  GAINES TOWNSHIP  GEORGETOWN TOWNSHIP  GRAND RAPIDS  GRAND RAPIDS TOWNSHIP  GRANDVILLE 

GREENVILLE   HASTINGS  HUDSONVILLE  IONIA  JAMESTOWN TOWNSHIP  KENT COUNTY  KENTWOOD  LOWELL   LOWELL TOWNSHIP   MIDDLEVILLE   NELSON TOWNSHIP  

OTTAWA COUNTY   PLAINFIELD TOWNSHIP    ROCKFORD  SAND LAKE    SPARTA   TALLMADGE TOWNSHIP  WALKER  WAYLAND  WYOMING

678 FRONT AVENUE  SUITE 200  GRAND RAPIDS, MICHIGAN 49504  PH. 616 77-METRO (776-3876)  FAX 774-9292  WWW.GVMC.ORG 

regarding people violating the rules and using the lane when they are not open to 
use in non-peak hours. D Kent added that the department is looking to develop 
more projects like this in the future especially in southeast Michigan. Partial 
shoulder use is a less impactful way to deal with peak hour congestion and is less 
extensive than adding a full lane. The shoulder use is limited to peak hours due to 
safety concerns regarding a small shoulder space. 

Thornton added that the public perception of this project is that it is ridiculous and a 
waste of money because it is legal to ride at peak times and not legal to ride at non-
peak times. If there is a safety concern during peak times, adding more cars on that 
stretch of road and allowing that lane to be used will create more safety concerns. If 
a car breaks down during the peak time, one will have the same challenges if the 
lane is open for travel in non-peak periods. As said earlier, enforcement will be 
another issue regarding this project due people not observing the hours for which 
the lane use is permitted.  

D Kent added that all the comments listed by Thornton are some challenges that 
have been discussed internally. He added that using the shoulder does not take up 
as much real estate as adding another permanent lane, because the addition of 
another lane would also demand for a larger shoulder. He added that the shoulder 
use is not a perfect situation; however, it gives us the ability to deal with some of the 
congestion at peak hours.  

Schweitzer asked if this project will be programmed in FY 2022. D Kent replied that 
the PE phase will be 2021-2022. The project is obligated in 2025 and is expected to 
be completed in 2026. Schweitzer added that the comments about this project can 
be taken into consideration during the PE phase at MDOT.  

MOTION by Naramore, SUPPORT by LaGrand, to approve the TIP 
amendments requested by MDOT and The Rapid. MOTION CARRIED 
UNANIMOUSLY.  

V. FY2023-2026 TIP DEFICIENCIES MAP APPLICATION 

Referring to Item V: Attachment A, Zonyk explained that, in preparation for 
programming of the FY2023-2026 TIP, GVMC staff has completed the deficiencies 
analysis and compiled all the information in an online application.  

This application will help identify possible candidates for road improvements. The 
entire federal aid road network was included in the data minus the MDOT routes. 
Zonyk shared his screen and demonstrated the use of the application live and 
answered any questions regarding its functionality. A splash page will pop up that 
explains the general functionality of the map. This page will open each time the link 
is opened so it can be referred to again. To use the application, the user will have to 



GRAND VALLEY METROPOLITAN COUNCIL 

ADA TOWNSHIP  ALGOMA TOWNSHIP  ALLENDALE TOWNSHIP  ALPINE TOWNSHIP  BELDING  BYRON TOWNSHIP  CALEDONIA  CALEDONIA TOWNSHIP  CANNON TOWNSHIP CASCADE TOWNSHIP  

CEDAR SPRINGS   COOPERSVILLE   COURTLAND TOWNSHIP  EAST GRAND RAPIDS  GAINES TOWNSHIP  GEORGETOWN TOWNSHIP  GRAND RAPIDS  GRAND RAPIDS TOWNSHIP  GRANDVILLE 

GREENVILLE   HASTINGS  HUDSONVILLE  IONIA  JAMESTOWN TOWNSHIP  KENT COUNTY  KENTWOOD  LOWELL   LOWELL TOWNSHIP   MIDDLEVILLE   NELSON TOWNSHIP  

OTTAWA COUNTY   PLAINFIELD TOWNSHIP    ROCKFORD  SAND LAKE    SPARTA   TALLMADGE TOWNSHIP  WALKER  WAYLAND  WYOMING

678 FRONT AVENUE  SUITE 200  GRAND RAPIDS, MICHIGAN 49504  PH. 616 77-METRO (776-3876)  FAX 774-9292  WWW.GVMC.ORG 

accept the liability statement located at the end of the splash page. The layer list is 
displayed on the right side that includes the general deficiencies data layer in blue 
along with other supplemental information like condition deficient information, 
congestion deficient information, etc. Multiple layers can be turned on to see the 
areas that carry data from both layers. These layers also include environmental 
justice and urban area data as well. Other filters are located on the left side of the 
website page that can help narrow down the results by jurisdiction, government unit, 
etc. PASER ratings, condition deficient, level of service severity, fatal accident, 
bike/pedestrian fatality, bike/pedestrian serious or fatal crash, and safety deficient 
are some of the other filters that can be turned on and off; they are also located on 
the left of the application. At the bottom center, the table is located that can be 
minimized to better view the map, and the table can also be exported into a CSV file 
that contains all the data shown in the map with the different filters turned on or off. 
Staff has also included three map widgets on the upper left corner of the map. The 
M widget tells the user how many miles have been selected through the different 
layers; the select and export to GeoJSON file widget lets you export the data into a 
shapefile, and the measurement widget lets the user measure the number of miles 
of a section of the road in a certain layer. Zonyk asked if there were any questions 
or comments regarding this application.  

Sprague asked about the difference between condition deficient and PASER rating. 
Zonyk answered that condition deficient rating goes up to seven because you can 
have reconstruction 3 and below.  

Tyler Kent added that the map application is a very useful tool. 

Ries asked about the triggers that identify as condition deficient or safety deficient 
and their definitions. Joseph responded that the definitions are listed in the Policies 
and Practices for Programming Projects document that was updated within the last 
few months to prepare for this analysis. Zonyk added that federal performance 
measures also steered some of the deficiency’s determinations.  

VI. OTHER BUSINESS

• Joseph gave an update on the Airport Access Study RFP. She stated that
GVMC received proposal submissions for the airport access study. A total of
four submissions have been received that will be reviewed and sent to the board
at their November meeting. The TDM RFP is slightly delayed because the state
legislature has not taken any action regarding the release of the COVID funds.
Hence, we cannot advertise the project until we are sure about the funding.
Joseph explained that the funding does not need to be spent all in one fiscal



 

GRAND VALLEY METROPOLITAN COUNCIL 

ADA TOWNSHIP  ALGOMA TOWNSHIP  ALLENDALE TOWNSHIP  ALPINE TOWNSHIP  BELDING  BYRON TOWNSHIP  CALEDONIA  CALEDONIA TOWNSHIP  CANNON TOWNSHIP CASCADE TOWNSHIP  

CEDAR SPRINGS   COOPERSVILLE   COURTLAND TOWNSHIP  EAST GRAND RAPIDS  GAINES TOWNSHIP  GEORGETOWN TOWNSHIP  GRAND RAPIDS  GRAND RAPIDS TOWNSHIP  GRANDVILLE 

 GREENVILLE   HASTINGS  HUDSONVILLE  IONIA  JAMESTOWN TOWNSHIP  KENT COUNTY  KENTWOOD  LOWELL   LOWELL TOWNSHIP   MIDDLEVILLE   NELSON TOWNSHIP  

OTTAWA COUNTY   PLAINFIELD TOWNSHIP    ROCKFORD  SAND LAKE    SPARTA   TALLMADGE TOWNSHIP  WALKER  WAYLAND  WYOMING 
 

678 FRONT AVENUE  SUITE 200  GRAND RAPIDS, MICHIGAN 49504  PH. 616 77-METRO (776-3876)  FAX 774-9292  WWW.GVMC.ORG 

 

year, and that the funds can be carried onto the next fiscal year. Joseph also 
added that the election of officers will take place in November and asked the 
members to think about nominations.  

• Faber shared her screen and introduced the two new PSAs for the Safety 
Education and Outreach Program and the Clean Air Action Program. Both were 
played during a recent Tigers game promotion.  

• Dennis added that MDOT is planning to have a construction update twice a year, 
which will involve conversations with different agencies about coordinating 
projects in the next couple years, and it will take place on October 20th at the 
Grand Rapids Transportation Service Center office at 9:30am. An official 
announcement will be sent later through email.  

• Joseph reminded the committee that project submittals are due on September 
24th.  

• Schweizer asked the timing of when I-196 and the S-curve will be open for 
public use. Dennis responded that the I-196 EB bridge over the Grand River 
project is scheduled to complete towards the end of September or early October 
this year. And the project on E Beltline is proposed to complete in November or 
December. The S curve project needed an emergency repair to the overhead 
sign. There were also issues with the foundation impacting the storm sewer lines 
and is proposed to be completed at the end of fall.  

 
 
VII. ADJOURNMENT 

Schweitzer, Committee Chair, adjourned the September 15, 2021, Policy 
Committee meeting at 10:12 am.  

 
 



ITEM IV: ATTACHMENT A 

GRAND VALLEY METROPOLITAN COUNCIL 
ADA TOWNSHIP  ALGOMA TOWNSHIP  ALLENDALE TOWNSHIP  ALPINE TOWNSHIP  BELDING  BYRON TOWNSHIP  CALEDONIA  CALEDONIA TOWNSHIP  CANNON TOWNSHIP CASCADE TOWNSHIP  

CEDAR SPRINGS   COOPERSVILLE   COURTLAND TOWNSHIP  EAST GRAND RAPIDS  GAINES TOWNSHIP  GEORGETOWN TOWNSHIP  GRAND RAPIDS  GRAND RAPIDS TOWNSHIP  GRANDVILLE 
 GREENVILLE   HASTINGS  HUDSONVILLE  IONIA  JAMESTOWN TOWNSHIP  KENT COUNTY  KENTWOOD  LOWELL   LOWELL TOWNSHIP   MIDDLEVILLE   NELSON TOWNSHIP  

OTTAWA COUNTY   PLAINFIELD TOWNSHIP    ROCKFORD  SAND LAKE    SPARTA   TALLMADGE TOWNSHIP  WALKER  WAYLAND  WYOMING 

678 FRONT AVENUE NW   SUITE 200    GRAND RAPIDS, MICHIGAN 49504    PH. 616 77-METRO (776-3876)    FAX 774-9292    WWW.GVMC.ORG 

MEMORANDUM 

DATE: November 10, 2021 

TO: Policy Committee 

FROM: Laurel Joseph, Director of Transportation Planning 

RE: FY2020-2023 Transportation Improvement Program 

On behalf of MDOT, KCRC, Grand Rapids, and The Rapid the following 
amendments/modifications to the FY2020-2023 TIP are being requested. Here are the 
specific requests:   

• MDOT is requesting the amendments/modifications to the TIP project list in the
attached pending projects and GPAs summary. Two of these changes have
triggered a GPA threshold increase for the FY2022 Trunkline Traffic Operations
and Safety GPA (shown in the summary attachment). MDOT is also requesting
committee review of the S/TIP exempt project list, which has been modified to
only show the projects that have undergone changes since the last Committee
meeting. MDOT staff may highlight a few of note during the meeting (please see
attachments).

• KCRC is requesting several changes to the FY2022 TIP, including adding a
bridge project, moving a project to FY2022 from FY2023, moving an illustrative
project into FY2022, removing a project from FY2022, and replacing it with a
project from the illustrative list (please see attachment).

• The City of Grand Rapids has received funding for a FY2023 safety project and
is requesting approval to add it to the TIP. This has triggered a GPA threshold
increase for the FY2023 Local Traffic Operations and Safety GPA (please see
attachments).

• Staff on behalf of The Rapid is requesting a technical correction to a FY2022
Rapid project that needed to be moved from one GPA to another, triggering a



GPA threshold increase to the FY2022 Transit Operating GPA (please see 
pending projects attachment).  

 
If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact me at (616) 776-7610. 



FY 2020-2023 Transportation Improvement Program
November 2021 Amendments/Modifcations

Fiscal 
Year

Job# GPA Type Agency Project 
Name

Limits Length Primary Work 
Type

Project 
Description

Phase  Fed  Amount  State  
Amount 

 Local  
Amount 

 Total  
Amount 

Federal 
Amend Type

2022 207817 Transit 
Operating

The 
Rapid

Transit 
Operating

Areawide 0.00 SP1702-ozone 
action

FY22 CMAQ - 
Free Rides on 

Clean Air Action 
Days

NI  $         80,000  $        20,000  $              -    $      100,000 GPA over or 
over 25% - 
technical 
correction 
(moved 
from one 
GPA to 
another)

2022 214079 Local Road Kent  
County

68th St SE Eastern 
Avenue to 
Kalamazoo 
Avenue

1.00 Road Rehab Asphalt Milling 
and Paving

CON  $       731,000  $                 -    $   182,750  $      913,750 Moved from 
Illustrative

2022 132524 S/TIP Line 
items

MDOT regionwide Regionwide - 
Grand

0.00 ITS 
Applications

2022 West 
Michigan TOC 
Control Room 

Operations

EPE  $   1,156,397  $      256,428  $              -    $   1,412,825 Budget 
increase

2022 132525 S/TIP Line 
items

MDOT Regionwide Various 
routes in 
Grand Region

0.00 ITS 
Applications

2022 ITS 
maintenance & 

operations

EPE  $       470,638  $      104,363  $              -    $      575,000 Budget 
increase

2022 213954 S/TIP Line 
items

MDOT Leonard St 
NE

TSC - major 
PR

26.06 Traffic Safety Non-freeway 
signing upgrade

PE  $                  -    $                 -    $              -    $                  -   Phase Added

2022 206572 Trunkline 
Traffic 
Operations 
And Safety

MDOT TSC wide Various 
Locations - 
Grand 
Rapids TSC

0.00 Traffic Safety Modernize 
signalized 

intersections

CON  $   2,157,920  $                 -    $              -    $   2,157,920 GPA over or 
over 25%

2022 213557 Trunkline 
Traffic 
Operations 
And Safety

MDOT Front Ave 
NW

Kent County 0.00 ITS 
Applications

2022 Safety 
Service Patrol 

Operations - 
Grand Region

OPS  $       294,660  $        65,340  $              -    $      360,000 GPA over or 
over 25%



FY 2020-2023 Transportation Improvement Program
November 2021 Amendments/Modifcations

2023 214068 Local 
Traffic 
Operations 
And Safety

Grand 
Rapids

Burton 
Street

Burton 
Street from 
Clyde Park 
Ave to 
Eastern 
Ave, city of 
Grand 
Rapids

1.98 Traffic Safety Signal 
modernization, 

pavement 
markings, 

pedestrian 
refuge island

CON  $     396,000  $               -    $    44,000  $     440,000 GPA over or 
over 25%

2023 214069 S/TIP Line 
items

Kent  
County

84th St SE 84th Street 
at 
Kalamazoo 
Avenue, 
Kent County

0.65 Traffic Safety Roundabout CON  $     600,000  $               -    $  678,054  $  1,278,054 Phase 
Added

2023 213928 Trunkline 
Traffic 
Operations 
And Safety

MDOT Leonard St 
NE

TSCWIDE 13.63 Traffic Safety Non-freeway 
signing upgrade

PE  $        32,250  $               -    $             -    $       32,250 GPA over or 
over 25%

November 2021 - Pending GPAs

Fiscal 
Year

MPO Job Type GPA Status
Total Usage 
Amount

2022 GVMC Trunkline Proposed $5,325,254
2022 GVMC Transit Proposed $250,000
2023 GVMC Local Proposed $1,820,000

$150,000
$1,160,000

Last Fed Approved 
Threshold
$3,778,588

GPA Name

Trunkline Traffic 
Transit Operating
Local Traffic Operations 



STIP Exempt Projects Report
November 2021 (Changes since last meeting)

Fiscal 
Year

Job# Responsible 
Agency

Project 
Name

Limits Length Primary 
Work Type

Project 
Description

Phase Phase 
Status

S/TIP Cycle S/TIP 
Status

Fed Estimated 
Amount

State Estimated 
Amount

Local Estimated 
Amount

Total Estimated 
Amount

Cost To 
Date

Fund 
Source

CR 
Approved 

2023 211694 MDOT US-131 From I-96 
north to 
Post Drive

6.185 Active 
Traffic 
Managemen
t

Active 
Traffic 
Managemen
t Systems

EPE Programmed 20-23 Approved $0 $1,900,000 $0 $1,900,000 $0 M 10/13/2021

2023 212533 MDOT M-11 2 structures 0.000 Bridge CPM Scour CON Programmed 20-23 Approved $0 $355,355 $0 $355,355 $0 M 10/07/2021
2022 213054 Kent County 

Community 
Action

Transit 
Operating

areawide 0.000 6410-5310 
Projects

FY22 5310 
CRRSAA 
Operating 
assistance

NI Programmed 20-23 Approved $788 $0 $0 $788 $0 CR11 10/04/2021

2022 213055 Hope Network, 
Inc.

Transit 
Operating

areawide 0.000 6410-5310 
Projects

FY22 5310 
CRRSAA 
Operating 
assistance

NI Programmed 20-23 Approved $83,535 $0 $0 $83,535 $0 CR11 10/04/2021

2022 213056 United Transit areawide 0.000 6410-5310 FY22 5310 NI Programmed 20-23 Approved $2,893 $0 $0 $2,893 $0 CR11 10/04/2021
2022 213081 Georgetown 

Seniors, Inc.
Transit 
Operating

areawide 0.000 6410-5310 
Projects

FY22 5310 
CRRSAA 
Operating 
assistance

NI Programmed 20-23 Approved $28,115 $0 $0 $28,115 $0 CR11 10/04/2021

2022 213493 Interurban 
Transit 
Partnership

Transit 
Operating

Interurban 
Transit 
Partnership/
Areawide

0.000 SP05-Local 
Bus 
Operating

FY22 Local 
Bus 
Operating

NI Active 20-23 Approved $0 $15,015,362 $0 $15,015,362 $2,502,560 CTF 10/04/2021

2022 213814 Interurban Transit areawide 0.000 SP09- FY22 NI Programmed 20-23 Approved $0 $542,369 $0 $542,369 $0 CTF 10/04/2021
2023 200196 MDOT M-21 From 

Bennett 
Street east 
to Valley 
Vista Drive

6.079 Road 
Rehabilitatio
n

Two Course 
Asphalt 
Resurfacing

PE Programmed 20-23 Approved $0 $500,000 $0 $500,000 $0 M 10/03/2021

2023 204773 MDOT I-196 at the 32nd 0.000 New Construct PE Abandoned 20-23 Approved $0 $20,000 $0 $20,000 $0 M 10/03/2021
2023 204773 MDOT I-196 at the 32nd 

Avenue 
Interchange

0.000 New 
Facilities

Construct 
new carpool 
lot.

ROW Abandoned 20-23 Approved $0 $48,000 $0 $48,000 $0 M 10/03/2021

2022 207873 MDOT Grand Grand 0.000 Road FPVS HMA PE Programmed 20-23 Approved $0 $10,000 $0 $10,000 $0 M 10/02/2021
2022 208525 MDOT I-296/US-

131 NB
From Bridge 
Street north 
to 
Richmond 
Street

1.343 Road 
Rehabilitatio
n

Concrete 
Inlay

PE Programmed 20-23 Approved $0 $1,315,000 $0 $1,315,000 $0 M 10/02/2021

2022 210063 MDOT M-37 From 92nd 
Street north 
to 76th 
Street

2.875 Road 
Rehabilitatio
n

Crush and 
Shape, 
Widening

PE Programmed 20-23 Approved $0 $2,500,000 $0 $2,500,000 $0 M 10/02/2021

2022 210063 MDOT M-37 From 92nd 2.875 Road Crush and ROW Programmed 20-23 Approved $0 $1,500,000 $0 $1,500,000 $0 M 10/02/2021
2022 210818 MDOT I-96 Whitneyville 

Avenue east 
to the 
Kent/Ionia 
County Line

8.346 Road 
Capital 
Preventive 
Maintenanc
e

Full Depth 
Concrete 
Pavement 
Repair

PE Programmed 20-23 Approved $0 $75,000 $0 $75,000 $0 M 10/02/2021



STIP Exempt Projects Report
November 2021 (Changes since last meeting)

2022 211211 MDOT M-45 The Grand 
River east 
to the 
Ottawa/Kent 
County Line

4.628 Road 
Capital 
Preventive 
Maintenanc
e

Paver 
Placed 
Surface 
Seal

PE Programmed 20-23 Approved $0 $50,000 $0 $50,000 $0 M 10/02/2021

2022 211212 MDOT M-45 West of 4.207 Road Cold Mill PE Programmed 20-23 Approved $0 $50,000 $0 $50,000 $0 M 10/02/2021
2023 213068 MDOT US-131 S US-131 SB 

over 
Grandville 
Ave

0.000 Bridge CPM Epoxy 
Overlay

PES Programmed 20-23 Approved $0 $249,085 $0 $249,085 $0 M 10/01/2021

2023 212929 MDOT US-131 NB US-131 NB 0.000 Bridge CPM Epoxy PE Programmed 20-23 Approved $0 $53,607 $0 $53,607 $0 M 10/01/2021
2023 212929 MDOT US-131 NB US-131 NB 

over 
Grandville 
Ave

0.000 Bridge CPM Epoxy 
Overlay

PES Programmed 20-23 Approved $0 $330,942 $0 $330,942 $0 M 10/01/2021

2023 212524 MDOT US-131 N 3 structures 0.000 Bridge CPM Pin and CON Programmed 20-23 Approved $0 $1,448,375 $0 $1,448,375 $0 M 10/01/2021
2022 204378 MDOT US-131 over West 

River Drive
0.000 Bridge 

Rehabilitatio
n

Deep 
Overlay

PE Programmed 20-23 Approved $0 $65,971 $0 $65,971 $0 M 10/01/2021

2022 204378 MDOT US-131 over West 0.000 Bridge Deep PES Programmed 20-23 Approved $0 $463,006 $0 $463,006 $0 M 10/01/2021
2022 212534 MDOT I-196 E 44th Street 

over I-196, 
M-37 over 
Nash Creek

0.000 Bridge 
Rehabilitatio
n

Bearing 
Realignmen
t, Joint 
Replaceme
nt, 
Pavement 
Relief Joints

CON Programmed 20-23 Approved $0 $452,513 $0 $452,513 $0 M 09/17/2021







 

 
 
 

September 9, 2021 

 
Laurel Joseph, Transportation Planning Director 

Grand Valley Metro Council 

678 Front Avenue NW, Suite 200 

Grand Rapids, MI 49504 

 

 
Ms. Joseph: 

The City of Grand Rapids is requesting the following FY 2023 Highway Safety Improvement Program 

(HSIP) project is added to the regional Transportation Improvement Program (TIP): 

 
Project Name:  Burton Street SE/SW 

Project Limits:  Clyde Park Avenue SW to Eastern Avenue SE 

Project Estimate:       $450,000 

Federal Amount:  $396,000 
Local Match:  $44,000 (construction) 

Work Description:  Traffic signal improvements at Buchanan Ave SW, Jefferson Ave SE, Madison Ave 

SE and Eastern Ave SE; traffic signal timing optimization at Clyde Park Ave SW; 

signal  preemption  for  emergency  vehicles  and  transit  throughout  project 

corridor  limits;  pavement marking  changes  to  remove  southbound  Buchanan 

Ave  right  turn  lane;  construct  raised median  refuge  island with  rapid  flashing 

beacons at Lafayette Ave SE. 

 
 

Please let us know if you have any questions. Thank you for your assistance. 

Sincerely, 

 

Kristin Bennett, AICP 
Transportation Engineering Project Manager 

 
 

cc:   Andrea Anderson, John Bartlett, Justin Kimura, Josh Naramore, Jon Re (Mobile GR Department)  
Tim Burkman, Rick DeVries (Engineering Department) 
Eric DeLong, Karyn Ferrick (Office of City Manager) 
 
 
 
 



N
o.

L
ea
d
A
ge
nc
y

P
ro
je
ct
N
am

e
P
ro
je
ct
L
im

it
s

W
or
k
T
yp
e

P
ro
je
ct
E
st

F
ed
er
al
H
S
IP

F
ed

H
S
IP

-
P
E

L
oc
al

(C
on
st
ru
ct
io
n)

Sp
li
t

P
E
S
p
lit

1
A
re
na
c
C
ou
nt
y

N
or
th
Fo

re
st
L
ak
e
R
S
A

Y
ar
is
h
R
oa
d,
K
in
di
g
R
oa
d
,A

lg
er
R
oa
d
ar
ea

R
oa
d
S
af
et
y
A
ud
it

20
,0
00
.0
0

$
-

$
16
,0
00
.0
0

$
-

$

2
B
ar
ry

C
ou
nt
y

G
ua
rd
ra
il

7
L
oc
at
io
ns

th
ro
ug
ho
ut
B
ar
ry

C
ou
nt
y

G
ua
rd
ra
il
in
st
al
la
tio
n

33
8,
69
5.
00

$
27
0,
95
6.
00

$
-

$
67
,7
39
.0
0

$

3
G
en
es
ee

C
ou
nt
y

B
ee
ch
er
R
oa
d

B
ee
ch
er
R
oa
d
fr
om

G
ra
ha
m
R
oa
d
to

B
al
le
ng
er
H
ig
hw

ay
R
oa
d
D
ie
t(
4
la
ne

to
3
la
ne

co
nv
er
si
on
),
co
ld
m
ill
in
g
an
d
re
su
rf
ac
in
g,
gu
ar
dr
ai
lu
pg
ra
de
s
if
ne
ce
ss
ar
y,
po
ss
ib
le

si
gn
al
re
m
ov
al
at
B
ee
ch
er
/C
al
ki
ns

in
te
rs
ec
tio

n
80
0,
00
0.
00

$
60
0,
00
0.
00

$
-

$
20
0,
00
0.
00

$

4
G
en
es
ee

C
ou
nt
y

L
in
de
n
R
oa
d

L
in
de
n
R
oa
d
fr
om

H
ill
R
oa
d
to
L
in
de
n
C
re
ek

P
ar
kw

ay
H
M
A
m
ic
ro
su
rf
ac
e,
ro
ad

di
et
(4

la
ne

to
3
la
ne

co
nv
er
si
on
),
dr
ai
n
st
ru
ct
ur
e
an
d
cu
rb

re
pa
ir
s

25
0,
00
0.
00

$
22
5,
00
0.
00

$
-

$
25
,0
00
.0
0

$

5
G
en
es
ee

C
ou
nt
y

M
or
ri
sh

R
oa
d
at
L
en
no
n
R
oa
d

M
or
ri
sh

R
oa
d
at
L
en
no
n
R
oa
d

C
on
st
ru
ct
a
R
ou
nd
ab
ou
t

85
0,
00
0.
00

$
60
0,
00
0.
00

$
42
,5
00
.0
0

$
25
0,
00
0.
00

$

6
G
ra
nd

T
ra
ve
rs
e
C
ou
nt
y

N
.L

on
g
L
ak
e
R
oa
d
at
St
ra
it
R
oa
d

N
.L

on
g
L
ak
e
R
oa
d
at
S
tr
ai
tR

oa
d

R
oa
d
S
af
et
y
A
ud
it

20
,0
00
.0
0

$
-

$
16
,0
00
.0
0

$
-

$

7
G
ra
nd

T
ra
ve
rs
e
C
ou
nt
y

N
.W

es
tS

ilv
er
L
ak
e
R
oa
d
at
S
ec
or

R
oa
d

N
.W

es
tS

ilv
er
L
ak
e
R
oa
d
at
Se
co
r
R
oa
d

R
oa
d
S
af
et
y
A
ud
it

20
,0
00
.0
0

$
-

$
16
,0
00
.0
0

$
-

$

8
H
ill
sd
al
e
C
ou
nt
y

B
an
ke
rs
R
oa
d,
M
os
co
w
R
oa
d,
T
er
ri
to
ri
al
R
oa
d

B
an
ke
rs
R
oa
d
fr
om

B
ra
nc
h
C
ou
nt
y
L
in
e
to
th
e
H
ill
sd
al
e
so
ut
h

C
ity

L
im
its
;M

os
co
w
R
oa
d
fr
om

S
te
rl
in
g
R
oa
d
to

M
as
ke
r

R
oa
d;
T
er
ri
to
ri
al
R
oa
d
fr
om

C
op
e
R
oa
d
to
U
S
-1
27

C
en
te
rl
in
e
(M

os
co
w
R
oa
d
an
d
T
er
ri
to
ri
al
R
oa
d)

an
d
sh
ou
ld
er
ru
m
bl
e
st
ri
ps

(B
an
ke
rs
R
oa
d)
,a
nd

re
ce
ss
ed

w
et

re
fl
ec
tiv
e
pa
ve
m
en
tm

ar
ki
ng
s

50
0,
00
0.
00

$
45
0,
00
0.
00

$
-

$
50
,0
00
.0
0

$

9
H
ou
gh
to
n
C
ou
nt
y

G
ua
rd
ra
il

9
R
oa
dw

ay
s
th
ro
ug
ho
ut
H
ou
gh
to
n
C
ou
nt
y

G
ua
rd
ra
il
up
gr
ad
es

48
2,
55
5.
00

$
38
6,
04
4.
00

$
-

$
96
,5
11
.0
0

$

10
In
gh
am

C
ou
nt
y

M
er
id
ia
n
R
oa
d
at
G
ra
nd

R
iv
er
A
ve
nu
e

M
er
id
ia
n
R
oa
d
at
M
-4
3
(G

ra
nd

R
iv
er
A
ve
nu
e)

C
on
st
ru
ct
a
ce
nt
er
le
ft
tu
rn

la
ne

on
no
rt
h
ap
pr
oa
ch

in
ad
va
nc
e
of

M
D
O
T
si
gn
al
in
st
al
la
tio

n
45
0,
00
0.
00

$
36
0,
00
0.
00

$
-

$
90
,0
00
.0
0

$

11
In
gh
am

C
ou
nt
y

L
ak
e
L
an
si
ng

R
oa
d

L
ak
e
L
an
si
ng

R
oa
d
fr
om

A
bb
ot
R
oa
d
to
H
ag
ad
or
n
R
oa
d

G
eo
m
et
ri
c
im
pr
ov
em

en
ts
at
th
e
in
te
rs
ec
tio

n
w
ith

B
ir
ch

R
ow

D
ri
ve
/T
ow

ar
A
ve
nu
e
to
re
m
ov
e
th
e
ex
is
tin
g
sl
ip
la
ne

an
d
ch
an
ge

in
te
rs
ec
tio

n
to

a
si
gn
al
iz
ed

T
-i
nt
er
se
ct
io
n
w
ith

pe
d
cr
os
si
ng
s
on

al
lt
hr
ee

le
gs
,r
oa
d
di
et
(4

to
3
la
ne

co
nv
er
si
on
)
al
on
g
en
tir
e
pr
oj
ec
tl
en
gt
h.

1,
10
0,
00
0.
00

$
60
0,
00
0.
00

$
-

$
50
0,
00
0.
00

$

12
C
ity

of
Ja
ck
so
n

C
ro
ss
w
al
k
E
nh
an
ce
m
en
ts
at
5
lo
ca
tio

ns
D
en
to
n
R
oa
d
at
K
ib
by

R
oa
d;
H
ic
ko
ry
A
ve
nu
e
at
Fo
ur
th
S
tr
ee
t

(w
es
ta
nd

no
rt
h
le
gs
);
P
ro
sp
ec
tS

tr
ee
ta
tt
he

M
L
K
E
qu
al
ity

T
ra
il;

an
d
W
es
tA

ve
nu
e
at
Fo
ur
th
S
tr
ee
t

S
id
ew

al
k
ra
m
ps
,L

E
D
bo
rd
er
ed

pe
de
st
ri
an

cr
os
si
ng

si
gn
s,
co
nt
in
en
ta
ls
ty
le
pa
ve
m
en
tm

ar
ki
ng
s,
pu
sh
bu
tt
on

pe
de
st
al
s,
cr
os
sw

al
k
lig
ht
in
g
(P
ro
sp
ec
tS

tr
ee
tl
oc
at
io
n)

32
8,
53
7.
83

$
25
7,
39
8.
26

$
-

$
71
,1
39
.5
7

$

13
Ja
ck
so
n
C
ou
nt
y

H
or
to
n
R
oa
d
(S
.J
ac
ks
on

R
oa
d)

R
S
A

H
or
to
n
R
oa
d
(S
.J
ac
ks
on

R
oa
d)

fr
om

Fe
rg
us
on

R
oa
d
to

W
ea
th
er
w
ax

D
ri
ve

R
oa
d
S
af
et
y
A
ud
it

20
,0
00
.0
0

$
-

$
16
,0
00
.0
0

$
-

$

14
Ja
ck
so
n
C
ou
nt
y

M
os
co
w
R
oa
d
R
S
A

M
os
co
w
R
oa
d
at
H
an
ov
er
R
oa
d,
at
H
at
ch

R
oa
d,
at
S
ea
rs
R
oa
d,
at

H
or
to
n
R
oa
d/
M
at
he
w
s
R
oa
d

R
oa
d
S
af
et
y
A
ud
it

20
,0
00
.0
0

$
-

$
16
,0
00
.0
0

$
-

$

15
K
al
am

az
oo

C
ou
nt
y

Pa
rk
vi
ew

A
ve
nu
e

P
ar
kv
ie
w
A
ve
nu
e
at
11
th
S
tr
ee
ta
nd

at
12
th
S
tr
ee
t

C
on
st
ru
ct
a
m
in
i-
ro
un
da
bo
ut
at
bo
th
in
te
rs
ec
tio

ns
69
4,
80
0.
00

$
60
0,
00
0.
00

$
-

$
94
,8
00
.0
0

$

16
K
al
am

az
oo

C
ou
nt
y

T
U
A
ve
nu
e
at
23
rd

S
tr
ee
t

T
U
A
ve
nu
e
at
23
rd

S
tr
ee
t

C
on
st
ru
ct
m
in
i-
ro
un
da
bo
ut

35
0,
00
0.
00

$
31
5,
00
0.
00

$
-

$
35
,0
00
.0
0

$

17
ci
ty
of

G
ra
nd

R
ap
id
s

B
ur
to
n
S
tr
ee
tS

W
/S
E

B
ur
to
n
S
tr
ee
tf
ro
m
C
ly
de

Pa
rk

A
ve
nu
e
to
E
as
te
rn

A
ve
nu
e

S
ig
na
li
m
pr
ov
em

en
ts
at
B
uc
ha
na
n
A
ve

S
W
,a
tJ
ef
fe
rs
on

A
ve
nu
e,
at
M
ad
is
on

A
ve
nu
e,
at
E
as
te
rn

A
ve
nu
e
an
d
si
gn
al

tim
in
g
op
tim

iz
at
io
n
at
C
ly
de

P
ar
k
A
ve
nu
e,
si
gn
al
pr
ee
m
pt
io
n
fo
r
em

er
ge
nc
y
ve
hi
cl
es

an
d
tr
an
si
tt
hr
ou
gh
ou
tt
he

co
rr
id
or
,p
av
em

en
tm

ar
ki
ng

ch
an
ge
s
to
re
m
ov
e
so
ut
hb
ou
nd

B
uc
ha
na
n
A
ve
nu
e
ri
gh
tt
ur
n
la
ne
,a
nd

R
R
FB

an
d

pe
de
st
ri
an

re
fu
ge

is
la
nd

at
L
af
ay
et
te
A
ve
nu
e

44
0,
00
0.
00

$
39
6,
00
0.
00

$
-

$
44
,0
00
.0
0

$

18
K
en
tC

ou
nt
y

84
th
St
re
et
at
K
al
am

az
oo

A
ve
nu
e

85
th
S
tr
ee
ta
tK

al
am

az
oo

A
ve
nu
e

C
on
st
ru
ct
a
R
ou
nd
ab
ou
t

1,
27
8,
05
4.
00

$
60
0,
00
0.
00

$
-

$
67
8,
05
4.
00

$

19
C
ity

of
B
ri
gh
to
n

M
ai
n
St
re
et
P
ed

C
ro
ss
in
g
Si
gn
s

M
ai
n
S
tr
ee
tf
ro
m
N
.F
ir
st
S
tr
ee
tt
o
S
.W

es
tS

tr
ee
t

In
st
al
lL

E
D
bo
rd
er
pe
de
st
ri
an

cr
os
si
ng

si
gn
s

21
1,
20
0.
00

$
19
0,
08
0.
00

$
-

$
21
,1
20
.0
0

$

20
L
iv
in
gs
to
n
C
ou
nt
y

G
ra
nd

R
iv
er
A
ve
nu
e
at
S
t.
Jo
se
ph

M
er
cy

H
ea
lth

C
en
te
r
B
G
ra
nd

R
iv
er
A
ve
nu
e
at
St
.J
os
ep
h
M
er
cy

H
ea
lth

C
en
te
r
B
ri
gh
to
n

S
ig
na
lm

od
er
ni
za
tio
n,
ad
va
nc
e
di
le
m
m
a
zo
ne

de
te
ct
io
n,
ea
st
bo
un
d
pr
ot
ec
te
d
le
ft
tu
rn

ph
as
e

18
4,
00
0.
00

$
16
5,
60
0.
00

$
-

$
18
,4
00
.0
0

$

21
M
ac
om

b
C
ou
nt
y

6
In
te
rs
ec
tio

ns
(n
or
th
er
n
pa
rt
of

C
ou
nt
y)

23
M
ile

R
oa
d
at
N
ap
iD

ri
ve
,2
3
M
ile

R
oa
d
at
R
om

eo
P
la
nk

R
oa
d,

24
M
ile

R
oa
d
at
N
or
th
A
ve
nu
e,
25

M
ile

R
oa
d
at
S
ch
oe
nh
er
r

R
oa
d,
26

M
ile

R
oa
d
at
N
or
th
A
ve
nu
e,
G
ra
tio

tA
ve
nu
e
at
C
ar
ri
ag
e

W
ay

D
ri
ve

S
ig
na
lm

od
er
ni
za
tio
n
in
cl
ud
in
g
bo
x
sp
an

at
tw
o
in
te
rs
ec
tio

ns
,b
ac
kp
la
te
s
at
th
re
e
in
te
rs
ec
tio

ns
,l
ef
tt
ur
n
ph
as
in
g
at

on
e
in
te
rs
ec
tio

n,
de
lim

m
a
zo
ne

de
te
ct
io
n
at
al
ls
ix
in
te
rs
ec
tio

ns
,r
em

ov
al
of

ni
gh
tf
la
sh

at
on
e
lo
ca
tio

n
66
1,
44
2.
00

$
59
5,
29
7.
80

$
-

$
66
,1
44
.2
0

$

22
M
ac
om

b
C
ou
nt
y

5
In
te
rs
ec
tio

ns
26

M
ile

R
oa
d
at
S
to
ne
y
C
re
ek

M
et
ro
pa
rk

en
tr
an
ce
,1
4
M
ile

R
oa
d

at
G
ar
fi
el
d
R
oa
d,
14

M
ile

R
oa
d
at
K
el
ly
R
oa
d,
H
ar
pe
r
A
ve
nu
e
at

Q
ui
nn

R
oa
d,
U
tic
a
R
oa
d
at
M
or
av
ia
n
D
ri
ve

S
ig
na
lm

od
er
ni
za
tio
n
in
cl
ud
in
g
bo
x
sp
an

an
d
ba
ck
pl
at
es

at
th
re
e
in
te
rs
ec
ti
on
s,
pr
ot
ec
te
d
le
ft
tu
rn

ph
as
in
g
at
tw
o

in
te
rs
ec
tio

ns
,d
ile
m
m
a
zo
ne

de
te
ct
io
n
at
al
lf
iv
e
in
te
rs
ec
tio
ns

66
8,
74
7.
00

$
60
0,
00
0.
00

$
-

$
68
,7
47
.0
0

$

23
C
ity

of
N
or
th
M
us
ke
go
n

Fl
em

in
g
S
tr
ee
t

Fl
em

in
g
S
tr
ee
tf
ro
m
R
ud
di
m
an

D
ri
ve

to
M
ou
lto

n
A
ve
nu
e

C
on
st
ru
ct
cu
rb

al
on
g
ea
st
si
de

to
cr
ea
te
ve
rt
ic
al
se
pa
ra
tio

n
be
tw
ee
n
th
e
ro
ad
w
ay

an
d
si
de
w
al
k,
re
m
ov
e
bu
m
p
ou
t,

up
gr
ad
e
A
D
A
ra
m
ps

40
2,
30
0.
00

$
32
1,
84
0.
00

$
-

$
80
,4
60
.0
0

$

24
C
ity

of
P
on
tia
c

N
on
-m

ot
or
iz
ed

C
ro
ss
in
g
Im

pr
ov
em

en
ts

A
ub
ur
n
A
ve
nu
e
at
H
ill
St
/C
en
te
r
S
t,
at
Pa
dd
oc
k
S
t,
at
S
an
fo
rd

S
t,

an
d
at
M
L
K
B
lv
d;
A
ub
ur
n
A
ve
nu
e
fr
om

H
ill
S
t/C

en
te
r
S
tt
o

C
ar
ri
ag
e
C
ir
cl
e
D
ri
ve

Fu
ll
si
gn
al
m
od
er
ni
za
tio

n
at
H
ill
S
tr
ee
t,
ot
he
r
in
te
rs
ec
tio

ns
w
ill
re
ce
iv
e
si
gn
al
ba
ck
pl
at
es
,A

D
A
ra
m
ps
,c
ou
nt
do
w
n

pe
de
st
ri
an

si
gn
al
s,
si
gn
in
g,
an
d
pa
ve
m
en
tm

ar
ki
ng
s,
fo
ur

R
R
F
B
s
be
tw
ee
en

H
ill
St
re
et
an
d
C
lif
fo
rd

S
tr
ee
t,
H
A
W
K

si
gn
al
be
tw
ee
n
M
id
la
nd

D
ri
ve

an
d
C
ar
ri
ag
e
C
ir
lc
e
D
ri
ve
,r
em

ov
al
of

ex
is
tin
g
ov
er
he
ad

pe
de
st
ri
an

br
id
ge
.

68
3,
79
3.
00

$
60
0,
00
0.
00

$
-

$
83
,7
93
.0
0

$

L
oc
al
A
ge
nc
y
H
S
IP

P
ro
gr
am

F
Y
20
23

R
ev
is
ed

9/
8/
20
21

SE
L
E
C
T
E
D
SA

F
E
T
Y
P
R
O
JE

C
T
S

krbennett
Highlight

krbennett
Highlight

krbennett
Highlight

krbennett
Highlight

krbennett
Highlight



ITEM V: ATTACHMENT A 

 
GRAND VALLEY METROPOLITAN COUNCIL 

ADA TOWNSHIP  ALGOMA TOWNSHIP  ALLENDALE TOWNSHIP  ALPINE TOWNSHIP  BELDING  BYRON TOWNSHIP  CALEDONIA  CALEDONIA TOWNSHIP  CANNON TOWNSHIP CASCADE TOWNSHIP  
CEDAR SPRINGS   COOPERSVILLE   COURTLAND TOWNSHIP  EAST GRAND RAPIDS  GAINES TOWNSHIP  GEORGETOWN TOWNSHIP  GRAND RAPIDS  GRAND RAPIDS TOWNSHIP  GRANDVILLE 

 GREENVILLE   HASTINGS  HUDSONVILLE  IONIA  JAMESTOWN TOWNSHIP  KENT COUNTY  KENTWOOD  LOWELL   LOWELL TOWNSHIP   MIDDLEVILLE   NELSON TOWNSHIP  
OTTAWA COUNTY   PLAINFIELD TOWNSHIP    ROCKFORD  SAND LAKE    SPARTA   TALLMADGE TOWNSHIP  WALKER  WAYLAND  WYOMING 

678 FRONT AVENUE NW   SUITE 200    GRAND RAPIDS, MICHIGAN 49504    PH. 616 77-METRO (776-3876)    FAX 774-9292    WWW.GVMC.ORG 

MEMORANDUM 

 

 
DATE: November 10, 2021 
 
TO:  Policy Committee 
 
FROM: George Yang, Senior Transportation Planner 
 
RE:  Safety Targets for Calendar Year 2022 
 

 
The Michigan Department of Transportation (MDOT) has established the 2022 traffic 

safety targets for the five federal performance measures based on five-year rolling 

averages as shown in the table below. Also included in the table is GVMC’s baseline 

condition based on the five-year rolling average from 2016-2020. 

 
Michigan State Safety Targets for Calendar Year 2022 

Measure 
(5-year rolling average) 

Michigan State 
Baseline 
Condition 

(2016-2020) 

Michigan State 
2022 Targets 
(2018-2022) 

GVMC Baseline 
Condition 

(2016-2020) 

Number of Fatalities 1,028.2 1,065.2 64 

Rate of Fatalities per 100 
million VMT 

1.05          1.098 0.90 

Number of Serious Injuries 5,673.2 5,733.2 457.2 

Rate of Serious Injury per 100 
million VMT 

5.78 5.892 6.42 

Number of Non-Motorized 
(Pedestrians and Bicycle) 
Fatalities & Serious Injuries 

762.8 791.6              69.2 

 

 

 

 



MDOT’s safety performance targets are based on two models developed and 

maintained by the University of Michigan Transportation Research Institute (UMTRI). 

The UMTRI models depend on results of a research report titled Identification of Factors 

Contributing to the Decline of Traffic Fatalities in the United States, which was 

completed as part of the National Cooperative Highway Research Program project 17-

67.  The models, predicting the number of fatalities and the change in counts of 

fatalities, rely on the correlation between traffic crashes, vehicle miles traveled (VMT), 

and risk. UMTRI identified four factors that can influence the outcome: the economy, 

safety and capital expenditures, vehicle safety, and safety regulations. For both models, 

economic factors such as the Gross Domestic Product (GDP) per capita, median annual 

income, the unemployment rate among 16 to 24-year old’s, and alcohol consumption 

had the greatest impact at approximately 85 percent.   

 

MPOs are required to establish safety targets by either: 

 

1. Agreeing to plan and program projects so that they contribute to the accomplishment   

of the State DOT safety targets for the performance measures; or 

 

2. Committing to a quantifiable target for the performance measures for their 

metropolitan planning area 

 

MPOs are required to establish targets no later than 180 days after the state DOT 

established the state safety targets. MDOT was required to report to FHWA its safety 

targets before August 31, 2021, and GVMC will therefore be required to decide on our 

MPO safety targets for calendar year 2022 no later than February 27, 2022. 

 

To aid in the discussion surrounding this topic, staff took a look at data related to GVMC’s 

safety performance as well as the safety projects we’ve implemented and safety funding 

that has been spent in the region over the last five years.  

 

As shown in the charts below, while the average number of fatalities and the fatality rate 

has been going up the last few years statewide, GVMC’s five-year moving average for 

both measures has been decreasing the last few years. GVMC’s five-year moving 

average for serious injuries and rate of serious injuries, however, has increased the last 

few years, as they have statewide, and our serious injury rate is higher than the state’s. 



Additionally, our average number of bicycle and pedestrian fatalities and serious injuries 

remained more stable than the number for the entire state.  

 

 

 
 

 

 



 
 

 
 

 



 
 

 
 



 
 

 

 

 



 
 

 

 

Comparing the last three years for which we have five-year moving average data (2018, 

2019, and 2020) about 6.5% of the state’s fatalities, 7.9% of the state’s serious injuries, 

and 9% of the state’s nonmotorized fatalities and serious injuries have occurred in the 

GVMC region. Meanwhile, our region has been able to secure roughly 9% of the federal 

local safety funding and about 11.6% of the total funding MDOT has spent in the safety 

templates over the last five years.  



Shown in the charts below, three quarters of the safety funding our locals have been 

awarded the last five years has gone toward signal modernization projects, while about 

half of MDOT’s safety spending has gone toward signing projects and a quarter to 

pavement marking projects in the region.  

 

 

 

 

75%

3%

10%

1% 11%

Spending by Project Type -Traffic Safety 2017-2021
(Local)

Signal modernization/upgrades

Vertical curve modification

Construct a left turn lane, signal
modernization, and ADA
upgrades
Road Safety Audit

Left turn lane
realignment/installation/phasing

0.98% 1.28%

23.43%

14.83%52.03%

7.23%

0.21%

Spending by Project Type - Traffic Safety 2017-2021
(Trunkline)

Deck Patching and Friction
Surface
Delineation

Markings

Passing Relief Lane

Signing

Turn Lane



More analysis should be done to determine the impact implementing all these projects 

has had on regional safety, if additional project types could be more impactful, and how 

our region can position itself better to compete for more safety funding. 

 

With all this information in mind, it is staff’s recommendation that GVMC continues to 

support state safety targets while also establishing regional goals to improve upon 

GVMC’s baseline condition for all safety performance measures. See summary table 

below. At their November meeting, the Technical Committee made the above 

recommendation. Final Committee action on these safety targets is required by February 

27, 2022. 

 

Measure 
(5-year rolling 

average) 

Michigan 
State 

Baseline 
Condition 

(2016-2020) 

Michigan 
State 2022 

Targets 
(2018-2022) 

GVMC 
Baseline 

Condition 
(2016-2020) 

Recommended 
Action on 

Safety Targets 

Recommended 
GVMC 

Regional 
Safety Goals 

Number of 
Fatalities 

1,028.2 1,065.2 64 
Support State 

Target 

Decrease 
regional 

number of 
fatalities 

Rate of Fatalities 
per 100 million 
VMT 

1.05          1.098 0.90 
Support State 

Target 

Decrease 
regional fatality 

rate 

Number of Serious 
Injuries 

5,673.2 5,733.2 457.2 
Support State 

Target 

Decrease 
regional 

number of 
serious injuries 

Rate of Serious 
Injury per 100 
million VMT 

5.78 5.892 6.42 
Support State 

Target 

Decrease 
regional serious 

injury rate 

Number of Non-
Motorized 
(Pedestrians and 
Bicycle) Fatalities 
& Serious Injuries 

762.8 791.6 69.2 
Support State 

Target 

Decrease 
regional 

number of 
nonmotorized 
fatalities and 

serious injuries 

 
Like all our members, GVMC staff is committed to working to improve safety for all the 
users of our transportation system in any way we can. Please contact me with any 
comments or questions at (616) 776-7696. 



ITEM VI: ATTACHMENT A 
 

         

GRAND VALLEY METROPOLITAN COUNCIL 
ADA TOWNSHIP  ALGOMA TOWNSHIP  ALLENDALE TOWNSHIP  ALPINE TOWNSHIP  BELDING  BYRON TOWNSHIP  CALEDONIA  CALEDONIA TOWNSHIP  CANNON TOWNSHIP CASCADE TOWNSHIP  

CEDAR SPRINGS   COOPERSVILLE   COURTLAND TOWNSHIP  EAST GRAND RAPIDS  GAINES TOWNSHIP  GEORGETOWN TOWNSHIP  GRAND RAPIDS  GRAND RAPIDS TOWNSHIP  GRANDVILLE 
 GREENVILLE   HASTINGS  HUDSONVILLE  IONIA  JAMESTOWN TOWNSHIP  KENT COUNTY  KENTWOOD  LOWELL   LOWELL TOWNSHIP   MIDDLEVILLE   NELSON TOWNSHIP  

OTTAWA COUNTY   PLAINFIELD TOWNSHIP    ROCKFORD  SAND LAKE    SPARTA   TALLMADGE TOWNSHIP  WALKER  WAYLAND  WYOMING 
 

678 FRONT AVENUE NW   SUITE 200    GRAND RAPIDS, MICHIGAN 49504    PH. 616 77-METRO (776-3876)    FAX 774-9292    WWW.GVMC.ORG 

 
 

MEMORANDUM 

 

 
DATE: November 10, 2021 
 
TO:  Policy Committee 
 
FROM: Laurel Joseph, Director of Transportation Planning 
 
RE:  The Rapid’s Public Transportation Agency Safety Plan 
 

 
As part of federal performance-based planning requirements, The Rapid was required 
to develop and submit a public transportation agency safety plan (PTASP) by the end of 
July 2021 and provide it also to the MPO for their acknowledgement. As part of this 
acknowledgement the MPO should express its support for the transit agency safety 
targets that are included in this PTASP.  
 
Attached for your review is The Rapid’s PTASP. The Committee will be asked to take 
action to acknowledge its receipt and support the transit safety targets that are included 
in the plan.  
 
If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact me at (616) 776-7610. 

 
















































	Policy Agenda November 2021
	PolicyMinutes_09152021
	TIP Amendment Packet
	November 2021_TIP_AmendModify
	Nov 2021 Pending Projects and GPAS
	Nov 2021 STIP Exempt
	KCRC 2020-2023 TIP
	FY2023 HSIP Award TIP Amendment Request (9-9-2021) - Burton Corridor West Section

	202111 Policy Meeting Safety Memo
	ITP_Safety Plan Memo

